Public Document Pack
LOCAL REVIEW BODY
MONDAY, 18 NOVEMBER 2019
A MEETING of the LOCAL REVIEW BODY will be held in the COUNCIL CHAMBER, COUNCIL
HEADQUARTERS, NEWTOWN ST BOSWELLS, TD6 0SA on MONDAY, 18 NOVEMBER 2019 at
10.00 am
J. J. WILKINSON,
Clerk to the Council,
08 November 2019

BUSINESS
1.

Apologies for Absence.

2.

Order of Business.

3.

Declarations of Interest.

4.

Consider request for review of refusal of application for erection of
dwellinghouse and agricultural building on land North East of
Hoprigshiel Farmhouse, Cockburnspath. 19/00590/FUL.
19/00023/RREF.
Copies of the following papers attached:(a)

Notice of Review

(Pages 3 48)

Including:
Decision Notice – page 28

5.

(b)

Officer's Report

(Pages 49 54)

(c)

Papers referred to in Officer's Report

(Pages 55 70)

(d)

Consultations

(Pages 71 82)

(e)

List of Policies

(Pages 83 92)

Consider request for refusal of application for replacement windows at
5 - 1 Sandbed, Hawick. 19/00203/FUL. 19/00026/RREF.
Copies of the following papers attached:(a)

Notice of Review

(Pages 93 110)

(b)

Decision Notice

(Pages 111 114)

(c)

Officer's Report

(Pages 115 118)

(d)

Papers referred to in Officer's Report

(Pages 119 140)

(e)

List of Policies

(Pages 141 144)

6.

Any Other Items Previously Circulated

7.

Any Other Items which the Chairman Decides are Urgent

NOTES
Members are reminded that, if they have a pecuniary or non-pecuniary interest in any item
of business coming before the meeting, that interest should be declared prior to
commencement of discussion on that item. Such declaration will be recorded in the Minute
of the meeting.
Membership of Committee:- Councillors T. Miers (Chairman), S. Aitchison, A. Anderson,
J. A. Fullarton, S. Hamilton, H. Laing, S. Mountford, C. Ramage and E. Small.
Please direct any enquiries to Fiona Walling 01835 826504
email fwalling@scotborders.gov.uk

Agenda Item 4a

Page 3

Page 4

Page 5

Page 6

Page 7

Page 8

Page 9

Page 10

Page 11

Page 12

Page 13

Page 14

Page 15

Page 16

Page 17

Page 18

Page 19

Page 20

Page 21

Page 22

Page 23

Page 24

Page 25

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 27

Page 28

Page 29

Page 30

Page 31

Page 32

Page 33

Page 34

Page 35

Page 36

Page 37

Page 38

Page 39

Page 40

Page 41

Page 42

Page 43

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 45

Page 46

Page 47

Page 48

Agenda Item 4b

SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL
APPLICATION TO BE DETERMINED UNDER POWERS DELEGATED TO
CHIEF PLANNING OFFICER
PART III REPORT (INCORPORATING REPORT OF HANDLING)
REF :

19/00590/FUL

APPLICANT :

Mr & Mrs S Phaup

AGENT :

Richard Amos (Duns)

DEVELOPMENT :

Erection of dwellinghouse and agricultural building

LOCATION:

TYPE :

Land North East of Hoprigshiel Farmhouse
Cockburnspath
Scottish Borders

FUL Application

REASON FOR DELAY:
______________________________________________________________________________________
DRAWING NUMBERS:
Plan Ref

Plan Type

17/B561/PL01
17/B561/PL02
17/B561/PL03
17/B561/PL08
17/B561/PL05
17/B562/PL09

Proposed Plans
Proposed Elevations
Proposed Site Plan
Proposed Elevations
Location Plan
Other

Plan Status
Refused
Refused
Refused
Refused
Refused
Refused

NUMBER OF REPRESENTATIONS: 0
SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS:
CONSULTATIONS
SBC Education: The proposed development is within the catchment area for Cocksburnpath Primary
School and Eyemouth High School. A contribution of £3,562 x 1 is sought for the High School, making
a total contribution of £3,562. Contributions are sought to raise capital to extend or improve schools or
where deemed necessary to provide new schools in order to ensure that over capacity issues are
managed and no reduction in standards is attributed to this within the Borders area.
SBC Environmental Health: Conditions requested to control drainage arrangements and water supply
for the house, and noise and waste arrangements for the agricultural building. Informative proposed to
give information on the use of stoves.
SBC Landscape: No response at the time of writing.
SBC Roads Planning: The site has no planning history and is accessed directly via a private road
which serves Hoprigshiels. The site proposes to use an existing field access which will be upgraded as
part of the development. As the site is directly accessed via a private road, I will not ask for the
junction at the site to be formed in a sealed surface. However, I would ask that the applicant consider
this to avoid the access falling into a poor state of repair due to the access also serving the adjacent
field. The private road which leads to the site is very narrow and I would require this road to be

Page 49

upgraded to include at least two passing places between the site and its junction with the public road.
As the road is not public, these passing places do not need to be to my full specification and can be
constructed with an unbound surface. The visibility at the site's access is obscured to the north east
and I would require this to be improved in order to allow vehicles to safely access and egress the site.
Cockburnspath, Cockburnspath and Cove Community Council: The Community Council have no
objections to this application. As the Environmental Health statutory consultation deals with water
supply, drainage etc., we have no further comments to make.
Health and Safety Executive: No objection.
Scottish Water: No response at the time of writing.
REPRESENTATIONS
None.
PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS AND POLICIES:
Local Development Plan 2016:
PMD1: Sustainability
PMD2: Quality Standards
ED7: Business, Tourism and Leisure Development in the Countryside
ED10: Protection of Prime Quality Agricultural Land and Carbon Rich Soils
HD2: Housing in the Countryside
HD3: Protection of Residential Amenity
EP3: Local Biodiversity
EP13: Trees, Woodlands and Hedgerows
EP14: Coastline
EP15: Development Affecting the Water Environment
EP16: Air Quality
IS2: Development Contributions
IS5: Protection of Access Routes
IS6: Road Adoption Standards
IS7: Parking Provision and Standards
IS9: Waste Water Treatment and SUDS
Other Considerations:
Development Contributions Supplementary Planning Guidance 2011 (Updated 2018)
Landscape and Development Supplementary Planning Guidance 2008
New Housing in the Borders Countryside Supplementary Planning Guidance 2008
Privacy and Amenity Supplementary Planning Guidance 2006
Placemaking and Design Supplementary Planning Guidance 2010
Trees and Development Supplementary Planning Guidance 2008
Waste Management Supplementary Guidance 2015

Recommendation by - Paul Duncan (Assistant Planning Officer) on 9th July 2019
BACKGROUND
This application seeks planning permission to erect a detached dwellinghouse and an agricultural building
on greenfield land located between Hoprigshiels Farm and Hoprig building group, near Cockburnspath in
Berwickshire.
This application follows pre-application discussions regarding similar proposals, although the proposals
under consideration did not include the agricultural building now proposed. An additional dwellinghouse was

Page 50

considered to be justified by the labour demand and circumstances at the farm, but the proposed site for the
house was deemed unsuitable.
SITE DESCRIPTION
The proposed site is located within the northern corner of an agricultural field roughly mid-way between
Hoprig building group and Hoprigshiels Farm. The field is bound by a mature tree belt to the north-west,
which separates it from a private farm track which connects the farm with the building group, and a post and
wire fence to the north-east. The field is served by an existing field access and gates to the north.
Overhead powerlines cross the field on a north/ south axis to the east of the site; the site is located between
very large pylons. The landform is gently undulating.
The farm steading is comprised of several modern farm buildings and a detached single-storey farmhouse of
modern suburban character.
PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT
The proposed site would be roughly triangular in shape, the southern side curved inwards. A detached,
roughly T-shaped single-storey dwellinghouse would be erected centrally within the site. The house would
have an unspecified render finish and its hipped and pitched roofs would be finished in pantiles. The
proposed agricultural storage building (40ft by 30ft in footprint, 12ft to eaves) would be located to the west of
the house, in line with the tree belt. An indicative scheme for shrub and tree planting has also been put
forward.
The dwellinghouse would be occupied by the main farmer, who will be moving into semi-retirement in the
future but wishes to remain on-site, overseeing its running. The existing farmhouse would be freed up as a
result of the development. It would be occupied by a new farm worker, who would replace an existing farm
worker who is also nearing retirement but has always lived off-site.
SITE HISTORY
There is no relevant planning history on the site.
KEY PLANNING POLICY
Local Development Plan policy HD2 states that the rural housing development in the open countryside will
only be granted in special circumstances on appropriate sites. Criterion (F) sets out two such
circumstances. These are where the proposed dwellinghouse would be a direct operational requirement of
an agricultural enterprise for (a) a worker predominantly employed in that enterprise where the presence of
that worker on-site is essential to operations, or (b) where the house would be used by a person last
employed by such a farm business and the house would release another house for use by a farm worker. A
range of further criteria are also applicable.
Policy HD2 is supported by the New Housing in the Borders Countryside SPG 2008 which expands on the
policy, with further guidance and policy considerations, particularly in terms of the siting and design of new
rural housing developments.
ASSESSMENT
Principle
The Council's rural housing policies seek to protect the countryside from inappropriate and sporadic new
housing development, whilst still being able to support rural communities and businesses. In the
circumstances outlined within the application and summarised above, a hybrid assessment against the
aforementioned criteria (a) and (b) of Local Development Plan policy HD2 (F) is appropriate.
The existing farm worker lives off-site and the supporting statement explains that he/she will need to be
replaced. I would agree that residence onsite will be essential when the new worker gradually becomes the
main farmer as the applicant gradually retires. As the current farmer (the applicant) will not be retiring now,
criterion (b) does not apply directly, but the same principles are considered to be applicable. The new house

Page 51

would free up capacity for the existing house to be occupied by a new farm worker whose presence on the
site will be critical for operational reasons. The supporting statement confirms that there is labour unit
demand for 2 full-time workers on the farm. At the pre-application stage, informal discussions were held
with the Council's Economic Development team and it was accepted that the scale of the farm and its stock
demand 2 full time workers. In principle, it is agreed that a dwellinghouse can be justified under policy
HD(F). Any house approved under such a justification would need to be tied to the farm by means of a legal
agreement.
As noted further above, LDP policy HD2 requires new rural housing to be sited appropriately. For the
proposed development, preference would be given to siting the house at either the existing farm steading or
the Hoprig building group. The overriding aim of rural housing policies within the Scottish Borders is to avoid
sporadic, isolated rural housing which gradually erodes the landscape character and appearance of the
Borders countryside. The proposed site lacks a clear relationship with either the farm steading or the Hoprig
building group. This was noted via pre-application advice which was provided last year. Whilst the
proposals have been amended to incorporate a new agricultural storage building, this has not strengthened
the argument for site selection. Further information has been provided with this application, but this has not
provided sufficient justification for site selection. It has not been adequately demonstrated that more
suitable sites at the Hoprig building group or at/ closer to the farm steading cannot be delivered. It is
recognised that sites at the farm steading may require removal of trees and/ or reconfiguration of working
practices at the farm but this would be preferable to the chosen site being developed. Whilst these sites
may be less attractive to the applicants, this would not be a material planning consideration.
In terms of the proposed agricultural building, the principle of such a building within a rural location would be
supported by LDP policy ED7 (Business, Tourism and Leisure Development in the Countryside). The
suitability of the proposed siting of the building is considered below.
Placemaking, Design and Landscape/ Visual Impacts
The orientation of the house and its siting within the plot has no obvious relationship with either the private
road, landform or the nearby tree belt. The development would break into an undeveloped field. The
proposed dwellinghouse would be large in overall footprint but this would be broken up by the roughly Tshaped form of the house. North and south elevation gables would be appropriately proportioned with
traditional roof pitches. The main west range of the house would feature a shallower, less traditional roof
pitch and form and is less suitable. Proposed materials (red/ pink natural stone and rendered walls and
pantiles to the roof) would be suitable for this part of Berwickshire. Overall, whilst the design of the
proposed house is considered to be broadly acceptable, its siting and orientation will exacerbate the
inappropriateness of the site itself, producing an unsuitable appearance in the wider landscape.
In terms of the farm building, whilst this is likely to be acceptable in scale, massing or materials, such
buildings should be closely associated with existing farm buildings unless exceptional circumstances justify
alternative siting arrangements. No such justification has been adequately demonstrated. Whilst it is
agreed that supervision of farm equipment is an important consideration, no sufficient reasoning has been
provided to explain why this could not be achieved at the farm steading.
Roads Access and Parking
The proposed site would be accessed directly via the existing private road from Hoprig building group which
currently serves Hoprigshiels Farm. An existing field access would be upgraded as part of the development
to allow vehicular access. The Roads Planning Officer does not require the junction to be upgraded to his
usual standard given it joins a private road, but would encourage this. Visibility splays (70m by 2.4m) and
two passing places are however required along the private road. These matters could be controlled by
condition were the application to be supported.
Residential Amenity Impacts
Policy HD3 (Residential Amenity) of the Local Development Plan states that development that is judged to
have an adverse impact on the amenity of residential areas will not be permitted. The policy also seeks to
ensure the new developments benefit from adequate levels of amenity.

Page 52

Given the distances to neighbouring dwellinghouses there would be no significant adverse impacts on
existing dwellinghouses. In terms of the amenity enjoyed by the proposed dwellinghouse itself, the property
would benefit from ample garden ground and a good level of general amenity. The Environmental Health
Officer has recommended conditions relating to noise and to waste arrangements for the agricultural
building. Given the applicant would control both the house and the farm building, and given they would be
tied to the farm, these conditions are not required. Policy HD3 is satisfied without such recourse.
Ecology
The site comprises part of an existing open field with little apparent ecological interest and is a significant
distance from any sites designated for their ecological interests. Works at the junction may affect existing
trees which could in turn affect breeding birds, but the scale of such works should be fairly limited.
Otherwise there are no significant ecological concerns arising from these proposals.
Prime Agricultural Land
The proposed site is classified as Prime Agricultural Land. Local Development Plan policy ED10 (Protection
of Prime Quality Agricultural Land and Carbon Rich Soils) seeks to ensure our finite agricultural land
resource is retained for farming and food production. The policy states that development which results in
the permanent loss of prime agricultural land will not be permitted unless the land is allocated for
development; the development meets an established need and no other site is available; or the development
is small scale and directly related to a rural business. The site is not allocated for development. It is
accepted that there is an established need for a dwellinghouse and that this is likely to be require building on
greenfield land. The proposed development would be small in scale, and there would be a relationship with
an existing rural business.
Services
The development would dispose of waste water via a septic tank which would be located in a field to the
north of the site. This would discharge to a watercourse also to the north of the site via field tiles with a
combined length of 300m. The Environmental Health Officer has recommended a standard condition which
seeks to avoid issues that can arise as a result of shared private drainage arrangements. Such a condition
is unlikely to be necessary in this instance given the applicant's control over both the development and land
and buildings in the vicinity.
A private water supply is proposed. The Environmental Health Officer has recommended this be controlled
by suspensive planning condition to ensure an adequate supply is available for the dwellinghouse. A
condition of this kind would be appropriate were the application to be supported.
The application states that surface water would be dealt with in a sustainable manner. Given the extent of
land within the applicants' control, this should be easily achieved.
Development Contributions
Where a site is otherwise acceptable in terms of planning policy, but cannot proceed due to deficiencies in
infrastructure and services or to environmental impacts, any or all of which will be created or exacerbated as
a result of the development, the Council will require developers to make a full or partial contribution towards
the cost of addressing such deficiencies. This is set out in Local Development Plan policy IS2.
The proposed development would sit within the catchment areas of Cocksburnpath Primary School and
Eyemouth High School. A contribution would be sought for the High School were this application to be
supported. This could be controlled by means of a s69 or s75 legal agreement.
Other Matters
A Health and Safety Executive consultation has been carried out given the proximity to the nearby quarry.
This has returned no objection.
The private farm road forms part of a registered customary path. This right of access would not be directly
affected by the proposals.

Page 53

REASON FOR DECISION :
The proposed development would be contrary to Policy HD2 of the Local Development Plan 2016 and the
New Housing in the Borders Countryside Guidance 2008 in that the proposed dwellinghouse and agricultural
storage building would not have a visually sympathetic relationship with either the existing farm steading or
the nearby building group; would result in sporadic rural development that would not relate sympathetically
to the character of the surrounding landscape; and insufficient justification has been submitted
demonstrating that a site more sympathetically related to the steading or building group is not available.

Recommendation: Refused
1

The proposed development would be contrary to Policy HD2 of the Local Development Plan 2016
and the New Housing in the Borders Countryside Guidance 2008 in that the proposed
dwellinghouse and agricultural storage building would not have a visually sympathetic relationship
with either the existing farm steading or the nearby building group; would result in sporadic rural
development that would not relate sympathetically to the character of the surrounding landscape;
and insufficient justification has been submitted demonstrating that a site more sympathetically
related to the steading or building group is not available.

“Photographs taken in connection with the determination of the application and any other
associated documentation form part of the Report of Handling”.

Page 54

Page 65

Page 66

Page 67

Page 68

Page 69

Page 70

Agenda Item 4d

From:Kate Tulloch
Sent:10 May 2019 15:05:44 +0100
To:DCConsultees
Subject:19/00590/FUL

Re application 19/00590/FUL - proposal to erect dwelling and agricultural building
on land NE of Hoprigshiels Farmhouse, Cockburnspath, Cockburnspath and Cove
Community Council have no objections to this application.
As the Environmental Health statutory consultation deals with water supply, drainage
etc., we have no further comments to make.
Kate Tulloch
Secretary
Planning Sub Committee
Cockburnspath and Cove Community Council.

Page 71

PLANNING CONSULTATION
To:

Education & Lifelong Learning (Neil Hastie)

From:

Development Management

Contact:

Paul Duncan

Date: 29th April 2019

 01835 825558

Ref: 19/00590/FUL

PLANNING CONSULTATION
Your observations are requested on the under noted planning application. I shall be glad to have
your reply not later than 20th May 2019, If further time will be required for a reply please let me
know. If no extension of time is requested and no reply is received by 20th May 2019, it will be
assumed that you have no observations and a decision may be taken on the application.
Please remember to e-mail the DCConsultees Mailbox when you have inserted your reply
into Idox.
Name of Applicant: Mr & Mrs S Phaup
Agent:

Richard Amos (Duns)

Nature of Proposal: Erection of dwellinghouse and agricultural building
Site:
Land North East Of Hoprigshiel Farmhouse Cockburnspath Scottish Borders
_________________________________________________________________________

Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, MELROSE, Scottish Borders, TD6 0SA
Customer Services: 0300 100 1800 www.scotborders.gov.uk

Page 72

CONSULTATION RESPONSE TO
PLANNING OR RELATED APPLICATION
Comments provided
by

Officer Name and Post:

Contact e-mail/number:

Education & Lifelong Learning (Neil
Hastie)
(Officer to fill in own name)
Date of reply

Consultee reference:

Planning Application
Reference
Applicant
Agent
Proposed
Development
Site Location

Case Officer:
Paul Duncan

19/00590/FUL

Mr & Mrs S Phaup
Richard Amos (Duns)
Erection of dwellinghouse and agricultural building
Land North East Of Hoprigshiel Farmhouse Cockburnspath Scottish Borders

The following observations represent the comments of the consultee on the submitted application
as they relate to the area of expertise of that consultee. A decision on the application can only be
made after consideration of all relevant information, consultations and material considerations.
Background and
Site description

Key Issues
(Bullet points)
Assessment



I refer to your request for Educations view on the impact of this proposed
development which is within the catchment area for Cocksburnpath Primary School
and Eyemouth High School.
A contribution of £3,562 x 1 is sought for the High School, making a total
contribution of £3,562.
Contributions are sought to raise capital to extend or improve schools or where
deemed necessary to provide new schools in order to ensure that over capacity
issues are managed and no reduction in standards is attributed to this within the
Borders area.
This contribution should be paid upon receipt of detailed planning consent but may
be phased subject to an agreed schedule.
Please note that the level of contributions for all developments will be reviewed at
the end of each financial year and may be changed to reflect changes in the BCIS
index, therefore, we reserve the right to vary the level of contributions.

Recommendation

If you require any further information please do not hesitate to contact me by
emailing estatemanagement@scotborders.gov.uk
Do not object
Do not object,
Object
Further information
subject to
required
conditions

Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, MELROSE, Scottish Borders, TD6 0SA
Customer Services: 0300 100 1800 www.scotborders.gov.uk

Page 73

Recommended
Conditions

Recommended
Informatives

Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, MELROSE, Scottish Borders, TD6 0SA
Customer Services: 0300 100 1800 www.scotborders.gov.uk

Page 74

PLANNING CONSULTATION
To:

Environmental Health

From:

Development Management

Contact:

Paul Duncan

Date: 29th April 2019

 01835 825558

Ref: 19/00590/FUL

PLANNING CONSULTATION
Your observations are requested on the under noted planning application. I shall be glad to have
your reply not later than 20th May 2019, If further time will be required for a reply please let me
know. If no extension of time is requested and no reply is received by 20th May 2019, it will be
assumed that you have no observations and a decision may be taken on the application.
Please remember to e-mail the DCConsultees Mailbox when you have inserted your reply
into Idox.
Name of Applicant: Mr & Mrs S Phaup
Agent:

Richard Amos (Duns)

Nature of Proposal: Erection of dwellinghouse and agricultural building
Site:
Land North East Of Hoprigshiel Farmhouse Cockburnspath Scottish Borders
_________________________________________________________________________

Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, MELROSE, Scottish Borders, TD6 0SA
Customer Services: 0300 100 1800 www.scotborders.gov.uk

Page 75

CONSULTATION RESPONSE TO
PLANNING OR RELATED APPLICATION
Comments provided
by

Officer Name and Post:

Contact e-mail/number:

Environmental Health

PLACEhealth@scotborders.gov.uk

Date of reply

29/04/19

Consultee reference: 19/01150/PLANCO

Planning Application
Reference
Applicant
Agent
Proposed
Development
Site Location

19/00590/FUL

Case Officer:
Paul Duncan

Mr & Mrs S Phaup
Richard Amos (Duns)
Erection of dwellinghouse and agricultural building
Land North East Of Hoprigshiel Farmhouse Cockburnspath Scottish Borders

The following observations represent the comments of the consultee on the submitted application
as they relate to the area of expertise of that consultee. A decision on the application can only be
made after consideration of all relevant information, consultations and material considerations.
Background and
Site description

Key Issues
(Bullet points)
Assessment

Wood Burning Stoves
Is a stove is to be installed as part of this development and so long as it is less than
45kW no further information needs to be provided. If it is greater than 45kW then
the applicant needs to declare this and provide additional information so that a
screening assessment can be carried out.

Recommendation

Recommended
Conditions

Object

Do not object

X Do not object,
subject to
conditions

Further information
required

Drainage Arrangements
No development should commence until the applicant has provided evidence that
arrangements are in place to ensure that the private drainage system will be
maintained in a serviceable condition
Reason: To ensure that the development does not have a detrimental effect on
amenity and public health.

Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, MELROSE, Scottish Borders, TD6 0SA
Customer Services: 0300 100 1800 www.scotborders.gov.uk

Page 76

Water Supply
No development is to commence until a report has been submitted to and approved
in writing by the Planning Authority, demonstrating the provision of an adequate
water supply to the development in terms of quality and quantity. The report must
also detail all mitigation measures to be delivered to secure the quality, quantity
and continuity of water supplies to properties in the locality which are served by
private water supplies and which may be affected by the development. The
provisions of the approved report shall be implemented prior to the occupation of
the building(s) hereby approved.
Reason:To ensure that the development is adequately serviced with a sufficient
supply of wholesome water and there are no unacceptable impacts upon the
amenity of any neighbouring properties.
Agricultural Shed
Any noise emitted by plant and machinery used on the premises will not exceed
Noise Rating Curve NR20 between the hours of 2300 – 0700 and NR 30 at all other
times when measured within the nearest noise sensitive dwelling (windows can be
open for ventilation). The noise emanating from any plant and machinery used on
the premises should not contain any discernible tonal component. Tonality shall be
determined with reference to BS 7445-2
Reason To protect the residential amenity of nearby properties.
All plant and machinery shall be maintained and serviced in accordance with the
manufacturer’s instructions so as to stay in compliance with the aforementioned
noise limits.
Reason To protect the residential amenity of nearby properties.

Any waste materials arising from the development shall not be not stored or
disposed of in any manner which would give rise to Statutory Nuisance conditions
developing at neighbouring properties to the site.
Reason To protect the residential amenity of nearby properties.

Recommended
Informatives

Private Drainage System
Private drainage systems often impact on amenity and cause other problems when
no clear responsibility or access rights exist for maintaining the system in a working
condition.
Problems can also arise when new properties connect into an existing system and
the rights and duties have not been set down in law.
To discharge the Condition relating to the private drainage arrangements, the
Applicant should produce documentary evidence that the maintenance duties on
each dwelling served by the system have been clearly established by way of a
binding legal agreement. Access rights should also be specified.
Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, MELROSE, Scottish Borders, TD6 0SA
Customer Services: 0300 100 1800 www.scotborders.gov.uk

Page 77

Private Water Supply
To fulfil this Condition, the following information should be provided:
1.

A description of the source(s) / type of the supply – i.e. whether the supply is
taken from a watercourse, loch, spring, well or borehole, or any other source
or combination of sources.

2.

The location of the source(s) of the supply – i.e. the appropriate eight figure
Ordnance Survey National Grid Reference(s).

3.

The estimated maximum average volume of water provided by the supply in
cubic metres per day (m³/day), including the details of any pump tests / flow
rate tests undertaken to determine this estimate. For boreholes / wells, refer
to BS ISO 14686:2003 “Hydrometric determinations - Pumping tests for water
wells - Considerations and guidelines for design, performance and use”.

4.

The intended use of the proposed building(s) – e.g. owner-occupied domestic
dwelling(s), rented domestic dwelling(s), holiday accommodation, etc.

5.

Where there are existing users of the supply:
(a) the addresses of all properties served;
(b) the existing occupancy levels of all such properties, as far as is
reasonably practicable. As a minimum, the provision of the number of
bedrooms per property will allow an estimate to be made of potential
occupancy levels;
(c) the current use of all properties served – i.e. as above;
(d) information identifying if and how the development will impact on the
existing users; and
(e) the details of any mitigating measures to be implemented to ensure the
quality, quantity and continuity of the water supply to the existing users
will be secured.

6.

Where there are other properties’ private water supplies in the vicinity of the
development that may be affected thereby (e.g. neighbouring boreholes,
wells, springs, etc.):
(a) information identifying if and how the development will impact on these
other supplies; and
(b) the details of any mitigating measures to be implemented to ensure the
quality, quantity and continuity of the water supply to these other
properties will be secured.

7.

Details of all laboratory analysis / tests carried out to demonstrate that the
water supplied to the development will be wholesome. For clarification, the
quality of the water throughout the building(s) must conform to the
requirements of the legislative provisions appropriate to the use of the supply,
as described below.

8.

Details of all water treatment systems to be installed to ensure that the water
supplied to the development will be wholesome.

For information, the minimum daily volume of water that requires to be supplied by
a private water supply must be equivalent to 200 litres of water per person per day
who will be using the supply.
It is the provision of this quantity that must be
ensured and, as such, water storage facilities may be necessary for this purpose.
Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, MELROSE, Scottish Borders, TD6 0SA
Customer Services: 0300 100 1800 www.scotborders.gov.uk

Page 78

When designing storage facilities, the minimum recommended capacity is three
days’ reserve, in order to allow for supply interruption / failure.
If the supply only serves owner-occupied domestic dwellings, the quality of the
water must comply with the requirements of The Private Water Supplies (Scotland)
Regulations 2006 (“the 2006 Regulations”). For all other supplies, the water quality
must comply with the requirements of The Water Intended for Human Consumption
(Private Supplies) (Scotland) Regulations 2017 (“the 2017 Regulations”).
If the supply falls under the remit of the 2017 Regulations, it will also require to be
sampled / monitored on at least an annual basis, and the local authority will also
require to carry out a risk assessment of the supply. As such, if the development is
the sole reason for the supply falling into this category, the applicant should contact
the Environmental Health Department of Scottish Borders Council prior to the
occupation of the building(s) to ensure that compliance with the legislative
provisions is able to be secured.

Stoves and Use of Solid Fuel
These installations can cause smoke and odour complaints and any Building and
Planning Consents for the installation do not indemnify the applicant in respect of
Nuisance action. In the event of nuisance action being taken there is no guarantee
that remedial work will be granted building/planning permission.
Accordingly this advice can assist you to avoid future problems.
The location of the flue should take into account other properties that may be
downwind.
The discharge point for the flue should be located as high as possible to allow for
maximum dispersion of the flue gasses.
The flue should be terminated with a cap that encourages a high gas efflux velocity.
The flue and appliance should be checked and serviced at regular intervals to
ensure that they continue to operate efficiently and cleanly.
The appliance should only burn fuel of a type and grade that is recommended by
the manufacturer.
If you live in a Smoke Control Area you must only use an Exempt Appliance
http://smokecontrol.defra.gov.uk/appliances.php?country=s and the fuel that is
Approved for use in it http://smokecontrol.defra.gov.uk/fuels.php?country=s .
In wood burning stoves you should only burn dry, seasoned timber. Guidance is
available on http://www.forestry.gov.uk/pdf/eng-woodfuel-woodasfuelguide.pdf/$FILE/engwoodfuel-woodasfuelguide.pdf
Treated timber, waste wood, manufactured timber and laminates etc. should not be
used as fuel.
Paper and kindling can be used for lighting, but purpose made firelighters can
cause fewer odour problems.
Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, MELROSE, Scottish Borders, TD6 0SA
Customer Services: 0300 100 1800 www.scotborders.gov.uk

Page 79

Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, MELROSE, Scottish Borders, TD6 0SA
Customer Services: 0300 100 1800 www.scotborders.gov.uk

Page 80

Advice : HSL-190701141917-325 Does Not Cross Any Consultation Zones
Your Ref: 19/00590/FUL
Development Name: Erection of dwellinghouse and agricultural building
Comments: Land North East Of Hoprigshiel Farmhouse Cockburnspath Scottish Borders

The proposed development site which you have identified does not currently lie within the consultation
distance (CD) of a major hazard site or major accident hazard pipeline; therefore at present HSE does not
need to be consulted on any developments on this site. However, should there be a delay submitting a
planning application for the proposed development on this site, you may wish to approach HSE again to
ensure that there have been no changes to CDs in this area in the intervening period.

This advice report has been generated using information supplied by at Scottish Borders on 01 July 2019.

Page 81
HSL-190701141917-325 Date enquiry processed :01 July 2019 (375019,669323)

CONSULTATION RESPONSE TO
PLANNING OR RELATED APPLICATION
Comments provided
by
Officer Name and
Post:
Date of reply

Roads Planning Service

Contact e-mail/number:

Craig Johnston
Roads Planning Technician
27th May 2019

Craig.johnston@scotborders.gov.uk
01835 824000 Ext. 5347
Consultee reference:

Planning Application
Reference
Applicant
Agent
Proposed
Development
Site Location

19/00590/FUL

Case Officer:
Paul Duncan

Mr & Mrs S Phaup
Richard Amos (Duns)
Erection of dwellinghouse and agricultural building
Land North East Of Hoprigshiel Farmhouse Cockburnspath Scottish Borders

The following observations represent the comments of the consultee on the submitted application
as they relate to the area of expertise of that consultee. A decision on the application can only be
made after consideration of all relevant information, consultations and material considerations.
Background and
The site has no planning history and is accessed directly via a private road which
Site description
serves Hoprigshiels. The site proposes to use an existing field access which will be
upgraded as part of the development.
Key Issues
 Access
(Bullet points)
 Parking and turning
As
the
site is directly accessed via a private road, I will not ask for the junction at the site to
Assessment
be formed in a sealed surface. However, I would ask that the applicant consider this to
avoid the access falling into a poor state of repair due to the access also serving the
adjacent field.
The private road which leads to the site is very narrow and I would require this road to be
upgraded to include at least two passing places between the site and its junction with the
public road. As the road is not public, these passing places do not need to be to my full
specification and can be constructed with an unbound surface.
The visibility at the site’s access is obscured to the north east and I would require this to be
improved in order to allow vehicles to safely access and egress the site.
I shall have no objections to this application provided conditions similarly worded to those
below are attached to any consent given.

Recommendation
Recommended
Conditions

Recommended
Informatives

Object

Do not object

Do not object,
subject to conditions

Further
information required

No development shall commence until a scheme of details for upgrading the private access
road serving the site has been submitted in writing to the Council for approval. Thereafter
the approved scheme of details to be fully implemented to the satisfaction of the Council
prior to the dwelling becoming occupied.
Reason: To ensure satisfactory access to the development site.
Parking and turning for two vehicles, excluding garages, must be provided within the
curtilage of the plot before the dwellinghouse is occupied and retained thereafter in
perpetuity.
Reason: To ensure the property is served by adequate parking at all times.
The access road to the site should be upgraded to include two passing places at locations
agreed with the Council and also for visibility splays of 2.4 metres by 70 meters to be
achieved at the site’s access onto the private road.

AJS
Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells, MELROSE, Scottish Borders, TD6 0SA
Customer Services: 0300 100 1800 www.scotborders.gov.uk

Page 82

List of Policies

Agenda Item 4e

Local Review Reference: 19/00023/RREF
Planning Application Reference: 19/00590/FUL
Development Proposal: Erection of dwellinghouse and agricultural building
Location: Land North East of Hoprigshiel Farmhouse, Cockburnspath
Applicant: Mr & Mrs S Phaup
Scottish Borders Local Development Plan 2016
POLICY PMD1: SUSTAINABILITY
In determining planning applications and preparing development briefs, the Council will have
regard to the following sustainability principles which underpin all the Plan’s policies and
which developers will be expected to incorporate into their developments:
a)
b)
c)
d)
e)
f)
g)
h)
i)
j)
k)
l)

the long term sustainable use and management of land
the preservation of air and water quality
the protection of natural resources, landscapes, habitats, and species
the protection of built and cultural resources
the efficient use of energy and resources, particularly non-renewable resources
the minimisation of waste, including waste water and encouragement to its
sustainable management
the encouragement of walking, cycling, and public transport in preference to the
private car
the minimisation of light pollution
the protection of public health and safety
the support to community services and facilities
the provision of new jobs and support to the local economy
the involvement of the local community in the design, management and improvement
of their environment

POLICY PMD2: QUALITY STANDARDS
All new development will be expected to be of high quality in accordance with sustainability
principles, designed to fit with Scottish Borders townscapes and to integrate with its
landscape surroundings. The standards which will apply to all development are that:
Sustainability
a)
In terms of layout, orientation, construction and energy supply, the developer has
demonstrated that appropriate measures have been taken to maximise the efficient
use of energy and resources, including the use of renewable energy and resources
such as District Heating Schemes and the incorporation of sustainable construction
techniques in accordance with supplementary planning guidance. Planning
applications must demonstrate that the current carbon dioxide emissions reduction
target has been met, with at least half of this target met through the use of low or
zero carbon technology,
b)
it provides digital connectivity and associated infrastructure,
c)
it provides for Sustainable Urban Drainage Systems in the context of overall
provision of Green Infrastructure where appropriate and their after-care and
maintenance,
d)
it encourages minimal water usage for new developments,
e)
it provides for appropriate internal and external provision for waste storage and
presentation with, in all instances, separate provision for waste and recycling and,
depending on the location, separate provision for composting facilities,
f)
it incorporates appropriate hard and soft landscape works, including structural or
screen planting where necessary, to help integration with its surroundings and the

Page 83

List of Policies

g)

wider environment and to meet open space requirements. In some cases
agreements will be required to ensure that landscape works are undertaken at an
early stage of development and that appropriate arrangements are put in place for
long term landscape/open space maintenance,
it considers, where appropriate, the long term adaptability of buildings and spaces.

Placemaking & Design
h)
It creates developments with a sense of place, based on a clear understanding of the
context, designed in sympathy with Scottish Borders architectural styles; this need
not exclude appropriate contemporary and/or innovative design,
i)
it is of a scale, massing, height and density appropriate to its surroundings and,
where an extension or alteration, appropriate to the existing building,
j)
it is finished externally in materials, the colours and textures of which complement the
highest quality of architecture in the locality and, where an extension or alteration, the
existing building,
k)
it is compatible with, and respects the character of the surrounding area,
neighbouring uses, and neighbouring built form,
l)
it can be satisfactorily accommodated within the site,
m)
it provides appropriate boundary treatments to ensure attractive edges to the
development that will help integration with its surroundings,
n)
it incorporates, where appropriate, adequate safety and security measures, in
accordance with current guidance on ‘designing out crime’.
Accessibility
o)
Street layouts must be designed to properly connect and integrate with existing street
patterns and be able to be easily extended in the future where appropriate in order to
minimise the need for turning heads and isolated footpaths,
p)
it incorporates, where required, access for those with mobility difficulties,
q)
it ensures there is no adverse impact on road safety, including but not limited to the
site access,
r)
it provides for linkages with adjoining built up areas including public transport
connections and provision for buses, and new paths and cycleways, linking where
possible to the existing path network; Travel Plans will be encouraged to support
more sustainable travel patterns,
s)
it incorporates adequate access and turning space for vehicles including those used
for waste collection purposes.
Greenspace, Open Space & Biodiversity
t)
It provides meaningful open space that wherever possible, links to existing open
spaces and that is in accordance with current Council standards pending preparation
of an up-to-date open space strategy and local standards. In some cases a
developer contribution to wider neighbourhood or settlement provision may be
appropriate, supported by appropriate arrangements for maintenance,
u)
it retains physical or natural features or habitats which are important to the amenity or
biodiversity of the area or makes provision for adequate mitigation or replacements.
Developers are required to provide design and access statements, design briefs and
landscape plans as appropriate.
POLICY HD2: HOUSING IN THE COUNTRYSIDE
The Council wishes to promote appropriate rural housing development:
a)
in village locations in preference to the open countryside where permission will only
be granted in special circumstances on appropriate sites,

Page 84

List of Policies
b)
associated with existing building groups where this does not adversely affect their
character or that of the surrounding area, and
c)
in dispersed communities in the Southern Borders housing market area.
These general principles in addition to the requirement for suitable roads access will be the
starting point for the consideration of applications for housing in the countryside, which will
be supplemented by Supplementary Planning Guidance / Supplementary Guidance on New
Housing in the Borders Countryside and on Placemaking and Design.
(A) BUILDING GROUPS
Housing of up to a total of 2 additional dwellings or a 30% increase of the building group,
whichever is the greater, associated with existing building groups may be approved provided
that:
a)
the Council is satisfied that the site is well related to an existing group of at least
three houses or building(s) currently in residential use or capable of conversion to residential
use. Where conversion is required to establish a cohesive group of at least three houses, no
additional housing will be approved until such conversion has been implemented,
b)
the cumulative impact of new development on the character of the building group,
and on the landscape and amenity of the surrounding area will be taken into account when
determining new applications. Additional development within a building group will be refused
if, in conjunction with other developments in the area, it will cause unacceptable adverse
impacts,
c)
any consents for new build granted under this part of this policy should not exceed
two housing dwellings or a 30% increase in addition to the group during the Plan period. No
further development above this threshold will be permitted.
In addition, where a proposal for new development is to be supported, the proposal should
be appropriate in scale, siting, design, access, and materials, and should be sympathetic to
the character of the group.
The calculations on building group size are based on the existing number of housing units
within the group as at the start of the Local Development Plan period. This will include those
units under construction or nearing completion at that point.
(B) DISPERSED BUILDINGS GROUPS
In the Southern Housing Market area there are few building groups comprising 3 houses
or more, and a more dispersed pattern is the norm. In this area a lower threshold may
be appropriate, particularly where this would result in tangible community, economic or
environmental benefits. In these cases the existence of a sense of place will be the primary
consideration.
Housing of up to 2 additional dwellings associated with dispersed building groups that meet
the above criteria may be approved provided that:
a)
the Council is satisfied that the site lies within a recognised dispersed community in
the Southern Borders housing market area,
b)
any consents for new build granted under this part of this policy should not exceed
two housing dwellings in addition to the group during the Plan period. No further
development above this threshold will be permitted,
c)
the design of housing will be subject to the same considerations as other types of
housing in the countryside proposals.

Page 85

List of Policies
(C) CONVERSIONS OF BUILDINGS TO A HOUSE
Development that is a change of use of a building to a house may be acceptable provided
that:
a)
the Council is satisfied that the building has architectural or historic merit, is capable
of conversion and is physically suited for residential use,
b)
the building stands substantially intact (normally at least to wallhead height) and the
existing structure requires no significant demolition. A structural survey will be required
where in the opinion of the Council it appears that the building may not be capable of
conversion, and
c)
the conversion and any proposed extension or alteration is in keeping with the scale
and architectural character of the existing building.
(D) RESTORATION OF HOUSES
The restoration of a house may also be acceptable provided that the walls of the former
residential property stand substantially intact (normally at least to wallhead height). In
addition:
a)
the siting and design reflects and respects the historical building pattern and the
character of the landscape setting,
b)
any proposed extension or alteration should be in keeping with the scale, form and
architectural character of the existing or original building, and
c)
significant alterations to the original character will only be considered where it can be
demonstrated that these provide environmental benefits such as a positive contribution to
the landscape and/or a more sustainable and energy efficient design.
(E) REPLACEMENT DWELLINGS
The proposed replacement of an existing house may be acceptable provided that:
a)
the siting and design of the new building reflects and respects the historical building
pattern and the character of the landscape setting,
b)
the proposal is in keeping with the existing/original building in terms of its scale,
extent, form and architectural character,
c)
significant alterations to the original character of the house will only be considered
where it can be demonstrated that these provide environmental benefits such as a positive
contribution to the landscape and /or a more sustainable and energy efficient design.
(F) ECONOMIC REQUIREMENT
Housing with a location essential for business needs may be acceptable if the Council is
satisfied that:
a)
the housing development is a direct operational requirement of an agricultural,
horticultural, forestry or other enterprise which is itself appropriate to the countryside, and it
is for a worker predominantly employed in the enterprise and the presence of that worker onsite is essential to the efficient operation of the enterprise. Such development could include
businesses that would cause disturbance or loss of amenity if located within an existing
settlement, or
b)
it is for use of a person last employed in an agricultural, horticultural, forestry or other
enterprise which is itself appropriate to the countryside, and also employed on the unit that is
the subject of the application, and the development will release another house for continued

Page 86

List of Policies
use by an agricultural, horticultural, forestry or other enterprise which is itself appropriate to
the countryside, and
c)
the housing development would help support a business that results in a clear social
or environmental benefit to the area, including the retention or provision of employment or
the provision of affordable or local needs housing, and
d)
no appropriate site exists within a building group, and
e)
there is no suitable existing house or other building capable of conversion for the
required residential use.
In ALL instances in considering proposals relative to each of the policy sections above, there
shall be compliance with the Council’s Supplementary Planning Guidance where it meets the
terms of this policy and development must not negatively impact on landscape and existing
communities. The cumulative effect of applications under this policy will be taken into
account when determining impact.
POLICY HD3 : PROTECTION OF RESIDENTIAL AMENITY
Development that is judged to have an adverse impact on the amenity of existing or
proposed residential areas will not be permitted. To protect the amenity and character of
these areas, any developments will be assessed against:
a)
b)
(i)
(ii)

(iii)
(iv)

the principle of the development, including where relevant, any open space that
would be lost; and
the details of the development itself particularly in terms of:
the scale, form and type of development in terms of its fit within a residential area,
the impact of the proposed development on the existing and surrounding properties
particularly in terms of overlooking, loss of privacy and sunlighting provisions. These
considerations apply especially in relation to garden ground or ‘backland’
development,
the generation of traffic or noise,
the level of visual impact.

POLICY ED7: BUSINESS, TOURISM AND LEISURE IN THE COUNTRYSIDE
BUSINESS, TOURISM AND LEISURE
Proposals for business, tourism or leisure development in the countryside will be approved
and rural diversification initiatives will be encouraged provided that:
a)
the development is to be used directly for agricultural, horticultural or forestry
operations, or for uses which by their nature are appropriate to the rural character of the
area; or
b)
the development is to be used directly for leisure, recreation or tourism appropriate to
a countryside location and, where relevant, it is in accordance with the Scottish Borders
Tourism Strategy and Action Plan;
c)
the development is to be used for other business or employment generating uses,
provided that the Council is satisfied that there is an economic and/or operational need for
the particular countryside location, and that it cannot be reasonably be accommodated within
the Development Boundary of a settlement.
In addition the following criteria will also be considered:
a)
the development must respect the amenity and character of the surrounding area,
b)
the development must have no significant adverse impact on nearby uses,
particularly housing,

Page 87

List of Policies
c)
where a new building is proposed, the developer will be required to provide evidence
that no appropriate existing building or brownfield site is available, and where conversion of
an existing building of architectural merit is proposed, evidence that the building is capable
of conversion without substantial demolition and rebuilding,
d)
the impact of the expansion or intensification of uses, where the use and scale of
development are appropriate to the rural character of the area,
e)
the development meets all other siting, and design criteria in accordance with Policy
PMD2, and
f)
the development must take account of accessibility considerations in accordance
with Policy IS4.
Where a proposal comes forward for the creation of a new business including that of a
tourism proposal, a business case that supports the proposal will be required to be
submitted as part of the application process.
POLICY ED10: PROTECTION OF PRIME QUALITY AGRICULTURAL LAND AND
CARBON RICH SOILS
Development, except proposals for renewable energy development, which results in the
permanent loss of prime quality agricultural land or significant carbon rich soil reserves,
particularly peat, will not be permitted unless:
a)
he site is otherwise allocated within this local plan
b)
the development meets an established need and no other site is available
c)
the development is small scale and directly related to a rural business.
Proposals for renewable energy development, including proposals for wind energy
development, will be permitted if they accord with the objectives and requirements of policy
ED9 on renewable energy development.
POLICY EP3: LOCAL BIODIVERSITY
Development that would have an unacceptable adverse effect on Borders Notable Species
and Habitats of Conservation Concern will be refused unless it can be demonstrated that the
public benefits of the development clearly outweigh the value of the habitat for biodiversity
conservation.
Any development that could impact on local biodiversity through impacts on habitats and
species should:
a)
aim to avoid fragmentation or isolation of habitats; and
b)
be sited and designed to minimise adverse impacts on the biodiversity of the site,
including its environmental quality, ecological status and viability; and
c)
compensate to ensure no net loss of biodiversity through use of biodiversity offsets
as appropriate; and
d)
aim to enhance the biodiversity value of the site, through use of an ecosystems
approach, with the aim of creation or restoration of habitats and wildlife corridors and
provision for their long-term management and maintenance.
POLICY EP13: TREES, WOODLANDS AND HEDGEROWS
The Council will refuse development that would cause the loss of or serious damage to the
woodland resource unless the public benefits of the development clearly outweigh the loss of
landscape, ecological, recreational, historical, or shelter value.
Any development that may impact on the woodland resource should:

Page 88

List of Policies
a)
aim to minimise adverse impacts on the biodiversity value of the woodland resource,
including its environmental quality, ecological status and viability; and
b)
where there is an unavoidable loss of the woodland resource, ensure appropriate
replacement planting, where possible, within the area of the Scottish Borders; and
c)
adhere to any planning agreement sought to enhance the woodland resource.
POLICY EP14: COASTLINE
Development proposals at a coastal location will only be permitted where:
a)
the proposal is located within the Burnmouth, Eyemouth and St Abbs settlement
boundary; or
b)
the proposal is appropriate under Local Development Plan policies; or
c)
the development requires a coastal location; and
d)
the benefits of the proposal clearly outweigh any damage to the landscape character
or to the nature conservation value of the site as assessed under other relevant Local
Development Plan policies.
POLICY EP15: DEVELOPMENT AFFECTING THE WATER ENVIRONMENT
Development proposals that seek to bring improvement to the quality of the water
environment will be supported. Where a proposal would result in a significant adverse effect
on the water environment through impact on its natural or physical characteristics, or its use
for recreation or existing river engineering works, it will be refused. Decision making will be
guided by an assessment of:
a)
pollution of surface or underground water, including water supply catchment areas,
as a result of the nature of any surface or waste water discharge or leachate, including from
the disturbance of contaminated land;
b)
flood risk within the site or the wider river catchment;
c)
proposals for river engineering works that may be required for fisheries management,
flood defence or erosion control;
d)
compliance with current best practice on Sustainable Urban Drainage (SUDS)
including avoidance of flooding, pollution, extensive canalisation and culverting of
watercourses.
POLICY EP16: AIR QUALITY
Development proposals that, individually or cumulatively, could adversely affect the quality of
air in a locality to a level that could potentially harm human health and wellbeing or the
integrity of the natural environment, must be accompanied by provisions that the Council is
satisfied will minimise such impacts to an acceptable degree. Where it is considered
appropriate the Council may request that an Air Quality Assessment is undertaken to assist
determination of an application.
POLICY IS2: DEVELOPER CONTRIBUTIONS
Where a site is otherwise acceptable in terms of planning policy, but cannot proceed due to
deficiencies in infrastructure and services or to environmental impacts, any or all of which
will be created or exacerbated as a result of the development, the Council will require
developers to make a full or partial contribution towards the cost of addressing such
deficiencies.
Contributions may be required for one or more of the following:

Page 89

List of Policies
a)
b)
c)

d)
e)
f)

g)

treatment of surface or foul waste water in accordance with the Plan’s policies on
preferred methods (including SUDS maintenance);
provision of schools, school extensions or associated facilities, all in accordance with
current educational capacity estimates and schedule of contributions;
off-site transport infrastructure including new roads or road improvements, Safer
Routes to School, road safety measures, public car parking, cycle-ways, bridges and
associated studies and other access routes, subsidy to public transport operators; all
in accordance with the relevant standards and the provisions of any Travel Plan;
leisure, sport, recreation, play areas and community facilities, either on-site or offsite;
landscape, open space, allotment provision, trees and woodlands, including costs of
future management and maintenance;
protection, enhancement and promotion of environmental assets either on-site or offsite, having regard to the Local Biodiversity Action Plan and the Council’s
Supplementary Planning Guidance on Biodiversity, including compensation for any
losses and/or alternative provision;
provision of other facilities and equipment for the satisfactory completion of the
development that may include: measures to minimise the risk of crime; provision for
the storage, collection and recycling of waste, including communal facilities; provision
of street furniture and digital connectivity with associated infrastructure.

Wherever possible, any requirement to provide developer contributions will be secured by
planning condition. Where a legal agreement is necessary, the preference for using an
agreement under other legislation, for example the 1973 Local Government (Scotland) Act
and the 1984 Roads (Scotland) Act will be considered. A planning obligation will only be
necessary where successors in title need to be bound by its terms. Where appropriate, the
council will consider the economic viability of a proposed development, including possible
payment options, such as staged or phased payments.
POLICY IS5: PROTECTION OF ACCESS ROUTES
Development that would have an adverse impact upon an access route available to the
public will not be permitted unless a suitable diversion or appropriate alternative route, as
agreed by the Council, can be provided by the developer.
POLICY IS6: ROAD ADOPTION STANDARDS
On non trunk roads new roads, footpaths and cycleways within developments must be
provided and constructed in accordance with the Council’s adopted standards to secure
Road Construction Consent, with the exception of development which can be served by a
private access.
POLICY IS7: PARKING PROVISION AND STANDARDS
Development proposals should provide for car and cycle parking in accordance with
approved standards.
Relaxation of technical standards will be considered where appropriate due to the nature of
the development and/or if positive amenity gains can be demonstrated that do not
compromise road safety.
In town centres where there appear to be parking difficulties, the Council will consider the
desirability of seeking additional public parking provision, in the context of policies to
promote the use of sustainable travel modes.

Page 90

List of Policies
POLICY IS9: WASTE WATER TREATMENT STANDARDS AND SUSTAINABLE URBAN
DRAINAGE
WASTE WATER TREATMENT STANDARDS
The Council’s preferred method of dealing with waste water associated with new
development will be, in order of priority:
a)
direct connection to the public sewerage system, including pumping if necessary, or
failing that:
b)
negotiating developer contributions with Scottish Water to upgrade the existing
sewerage network and/or increasing capacity at the waste water treatment works, or failing
that:
c)
agreement with Scottish Water and SEPA where required to provide permanent or
temporary alternatives to sewer connection including the possibility of stand alone treatment
plants until sewer capacity becomes available, or, failing that:
d)
for development in the countryside i.e. not within or immediately adjacent to publicly
sewered areas, the use of private sewerage treatment may be acceptable, providing it can
be demonstrated that this can be delivered without any negative impacts to public health, the
environment or the quality of watercourses or groundwater.
In settlements served by the public foul sewer, permission for an individual private sewage
treatment system will normally be refused unless exceptional circumstances prevail and the
conditions in criteria (d) above can be satisfied.
Development will be refused if:
a)
it will result in a proliferation of individual septic tanks or other private water treatment
infrastructure within settlements,
b)
it will overload existing mains infrastructure or it is impractical for the developer to
provide for new infrastructure.
SUSTAINABLE URBAN DRAINAGE
Surface water management for new development, for both greenfield and brownfield sites,
must comply with current best practice on sustainable urban drainage systems to the
satisfaction of the council, Scottish Environment Protection Agency (where required),
Scottish Natural Heritage and other interested parties where required. Development will be
refused unless surface water treatment is dealt with in a sustainable manner that avoids
flooding, pollution, extensive canalisation and culverting of watercourses. A drainage
strategy should be submitted with planning applications to include treatment and flood
attenuation measures and details for the long term maintenance of any necessary features.
POLICY IS11: HAZARDOUS DEVELOPMENTS
Proposals for hazardous developments as defined under the relevant legislation will be
subject to strict controls on siting to maintain appropriate separation from residential areas
and areas frequented by the public, major transport routes and areas of national heritage
importance.
Development will be refused if, guided by the advice of the Health and Safety Executive and
other consultees as appropriate:
a)
the proposal would cause unacceptable levels of pollution or public nuisance or result
in an unacceptable hazard to the public or the environment, or
b)
the proposal is located in close proximity to existing facilities or infrastructure that
would result in the development causing unacceptable levels of pollution or nuisance or
result in an unacceptable hazard to the public or the environment.

Page 91

List of Policies
OTHER MATERIAL CONSIDERATIONS










SBC Supplementary Planning Guidance on Placemaking & Design 2010
SBC Supplementary Planning Guidance on Privacy and Sunlight 2006
SBC Supplementary Planning Guidance on Development Contributions 2011
SBC Supplementary Planning Guidance on New Housing in the Borders Countryside
2008
SBC Supplementary Planning Guidance on Landscape and Development 2008
SBC Supplementary Planning Guidance on Trees and Development 2008
SBC Supplementary Planning Guidance on Waste Management 2015
Scottish Planning Policy
PAN 72 “Housing in the Countryside” 2005

Page 92

Agenda Item 5a

Page 93

Page 94

Page 95

Page 96

Page 97

Page 98

Page 99

Page 100

Page 101

Page 102

Page 103

Page 104

Page 105

Page 106

Page 107

Page 108

Page 109

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 5b

Hawick Angling Club
per Roxburghe Home Solutions Ltd
Per John Parkes
Block 1, Unit 1
Galalaw Business Park
Hawick



Stuart Herkes
01835 825039

Our Ref:

19/00203/FUL

Please ask for:

Your Ref:
E-Mail:
Date:

sherkes@scotborders.gov.uk
25th September 2019

Dear Sir/Madam
PLANNING APPLICATION AT 5 - 1 Sandbed Hawick Scottish Borders TD9 0HE
PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT:

Replacement windows

APPLICANT:

Hawick Angling Club

Please find attached the formal notice of refusal for the above application.
Drawings can be found on the Planning pages of the Council website at
https://eplanning.scotborders.gov.uk/online-applications/.
Your right of appeal is set out within the decision notice.
Yours faithfully
John Hayward
Planning & Development Standards Manager

Page 111

Regulatory Services
TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (SCOTLAND) ACT 1997 (as amended)
Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (Scotland) Regulations 2013
Application for Planning Permission

Reference : 19/00203/FUL

To : Hawick Angling Club per Roxburghe Home Solutions Ltd Per John Parkes Block 1, Unit 1
Galalaw Business Park Hawick Scotland TD9 8PZ
With reference to your application validated on 4th March 2019 for planning permission under the Town and
Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as amended) for the following development :-

Proposal : Replacement windows

at : 5 - 1 Sandbed Hawick Scottish Borders TD9 0HE

The Scottish Borders Council hereby refuse planning permission for the reason(s) stated on the attached
schedule.
Dated 24th September 2019
Regulatory Services
Council Headquarters
Newtown St Boswells
MELROSE
TD6 0SA
John Hayward
Planning & Development Standards Manager

Visit http://eplanning.scotborders.gov.uk/online-applications/

Page 112

Regulatory Services
APPLICATION REFERENCE : 19/00203/FUL
Schedule of Plans and Drawings Refused:
Plan Ref

Photo
50MM outer frame
70mm T-Transom

Plan Type

Plan Status

Location Plan
Existing Elevations
Proposed Elevations
Specifications
Specifications

Refused
Refused
Refused
Refused
Refused

REASON FOR REFUSAL
1

The proposal fails to comply with Policies PMD2 and EP9 of the Scottish Borders Council Local
Development Plan 2016, and with the advice contained within the Supplementary Planning
Guidance: Shop Fronts and Shop Signs 2011, in that its appearance has a significantly adverse and
unacceptable visual impact on the character of the building, and is highly detrimental to the
character and appearance of Hawick's Conservation Area.

FOR THE INFORMATION OF THE APPLICANT
If the applicant is aggrieved by the decision of the Planning Authority to refuse planning permission for or
approval required by a condition in respect of the proposed development, or to grant permission or approval
subject to conditions, the applicant may require the planning authority to review the case under Section 43A
of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as amended) within three months from the date of
this notice.
The notice of review must be submitted on the standard form and addressed to the Clerk of The Local
Review Body, Democratic Services, Scottish Borders Council, Council Headquarters, Newtown St Boswells.
TD6 0SA or sent by email to localreview@scotborders.gov.uk. The standard form and guidance notes can
be found online at Appeal a Planning Decision. Appeals to the Local Review Body can also be made via the
Scottish Government Planning and Environmental Appeals Division by clicking on the following link PEAD
If permission to develop land is refused or granted subject to conditions, whether by the Planning Authority
or by the Scottish Ministers, and the owner of the land claims that the land has become incapable of
reasonably beneficial use in its existing state and cannot be rendered capable of reasonably beneficial use
by the carrying out of any development which has been or would be permitted, the owner may serve on the
Planning Authority a purchase notice requiring the purchase of his interest in the land in accordance with the
provisions of Part 5 of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as amended).

Visit http://eplanning.scotborders.gov.uk/online-applications/

Page 113

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 5c

SCOTTISH BORDERS COUNCIL
APPLICATION TO BE DETERMINED UNDER POWERS DELEGATED TO
CHIEF PLANNING OFFICER
PART III REPORT (INCORPORATING REPORT OF HANDLING)
REF :

19/00203/FUL

APPLICANT :

Hawick Angling Club

AGENT :

Roxburghe Home Solutions Ltd

DEVELOPMENT :

Replacement windows

LOCATION:

TYPE :

5 - 1 Sandbed
Hawick
Scottish Borders
TD9 0HE

FUL Application

REASON FOR DELAY:
______________________________________________________________________________________
DRAWING NUMBERS:
Plan Ref

Photo
50MM outer frame
70mm T-Transom

Plan Type
Location Plan
Existing Elevations
Proposed Elevations
Specifications
Specifications

Plan Status
Refused
Refused
Refused
Refused
Refused

NUMBER OF REPRESENTATIONS: 0
SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS:
No representations.
The Community Council has been consulted but has not responded to the public consultation.
PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS AND POLICIES:
Scottish Borders Council Local Development Plan 2016:
Policy PMD1: Sustainability
Policy PMD2: Quality Standards
Policy ED3: Town Centres and Shopping Development
Policy HD3: Residential Amenity
Policy EP9: Conservation Areas
Shop Fronts and Shop Signs SPG (2011)
Recommendation by - Stuart Herkes (Planning Officer) on 24th September 2019

Page 115

This application proposes replacement windows within the shopfront of a premises at 5 - 1 Sandbed, which
lies within the Core Area/Area of Prime Frontage in Hawick's Conservation Area. The site is the premises of
Hawick Angling Club. At present the windows are red-painted timber-framed units. The Applicants' concern
is that these should now be replaced by uPVC units. A proposed elevation drawing (in fact, a drawing
imposed on a photograph) describes thick and apparently white-framed units substituted for the existing
timber units. Supporting specification details clarify that these would indeed be fixed (non-openable) units
with heavy, obviously modern frames and mullions of non-traditional profiles.
While the existing window units are themselves not traditional units with a pronounced horizontal emphasis,
they have relatively slender fames which - since these are coloured to match the shop front's doors and
shopfront - are at present, relatively unobtrusive in their appearance. The proposed uPVC units however,
would see a considerable thickening of the frames and the introduction of very heavy and obviously nontraditional glazed units in their profiles, dimensions and material. Were these units to be brilliant white as
suggested by the photomontage, these would be even more visually dominant and incongruous, being liable
to 'confuse' the character of the premises, by suggesting a domestic rather than commercial appearance.
The Council's Supplementary Planning Guidance Note on Shop Fronts and Shop Signs advises that: "it is
important that a shop front is designed with proper regard to the appearance, not only of the individual
building, but of the wider street scene or townscape of which it is part". The particular sensitivity of premises
in Conservation Areas is noted. In fact, it is explicitly recognised that shop fronts, and the quality of shop
fronts, are "a prime influencer on character" in Conservation Areas. Accordingly, while the existing shop
front is not a traditional shop front, it is relatively unobtrusive visually; the window-frames in particular (being
slender-framed units, coloured to match the shop front) are not prominent features. However, while perhaps
incidental, the proposal would see the new window-frames becoming visually prominent features in their
dimensions and colour, liable to dominate the character of the frontage of the premises, and introduce a
decidedly domestic and non-traditional character, which would be both incongruous and an eyesore in its
effect on the premises and the Conservation Area. It is the case that surrounding shop fronts are fairly mixed
in their characters with respect to the retention of traditional details, but a critical consideration is that none
feature such heavy and domestic appearing frames and as such, I can find no context that would allow what
is proposed to be acceptably accommodated. It would be notably different and out-of-keeping with
surrounding shop fronts; and I consider, unacceptably so.
The proposed replacement units patently do not retain the design, pattern and dimensions of the existing
unit and would look obviously different, non-traditional, and I consider, unsympathetic to the property and its
situation within the Core Area/Area of Prime Frontage of the Conservation Area. I am aware that the
Applicant is concerned that account is taken of there already being uPVC units in surrounding premises but
there are no equivalent heavy-framed and domestic-looking white uPVC glazing units in shop front windows
in the near vicinity. These windows would simply not be sympathetic replacements for the existing, and do
not retain or introduce any appropriate and traditional features. The effect would be entirely negative and
visually disruptive in terms of its impacts upon the site and surrounding area, including the Core Area/Area
of Prime Frontage of the Conservation Area.
Taking account of all of the above, I consider that the proposal is objectionable, and that the character of the
Conservation Area would not be appropriately conserved were the uPVC units (including with their use of
applied astragals) to be used in this shop front. I have advised the Applicant that I would be supportive of the
principle of the existing windows being replaced by timber-framed units, but ultimately their concern has
been that the units should be uPVC, advising that uPVC is already a material present within the vicinity.
There are certainly non-traditional designs and materials of windows in the surrounding area, but this in itself
does not (at least in isolation) require, or otherwise allow, the Planning Authority to set aside the
requirements of planning policy and the guidance of the Replacement Windows and Doors when it comes to
the assessment of a specific proposal; while as noted above, account is necessarily had to the design and
appearance of the specific proposed replacement units which in this case, are obviously modern, with
decidedly heavy-looking framing. Moreover, the specific proposal here is a shopfront and an additional
concern is also the potential for the proposed units to give a decidedly domestic character to the premises.
While white uPVC windows may indeed be featured relative to upper residential flats, their introduction to a
shopfront in place of painted timber-framed units would have a significant, and I consider unacceptably
detrimental, visual impact, both confusing the character of the premises and drawing undue attention to the
window-frames themselves as a feature (when at present these are simply 'read' as part of the shopfront
without any undue prominence or salience).

Page 116

REASON FOR DECISION :
The planning application should be refused for the following reason:
(i) the proposal fails to comply with Policies PMD2 and EP9 of the Scottish Borders Council Local
Development Plan 2016, and with the advice contained within the Supplementary Planning Guidance: Shop
Fronts and Shop Signs 2011, in that its appearance has a significantly adverse and unacceptable visual
impact on the character of the building, and is highly detrimental to the character and appearance of
Hawick's Conservation Area.
Recommendation: Refused
1

The proposal fails to comply with Policies PMD2 and EP9 of the Scottish Borders Council Local
Development Plan 2016, and with the advice contained within the Supplementary Planning
Guidance: Shop Fronts and Shop Signs 2011, in that its appearance has a significantly adverse and
unacceptable visual impact on the character of the building, and is highly detrimental to the
character and appearance of Hawick's Conservation Area.

“Photographs taken in connection with the determination of the application and any other
associated documentation form part of the Report of Handling”.

Page 117

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 5d

Page 119

Page 120

Page 121

Page 122

Page 123

Page 124

Page 125

Page 126

Page 127

Page 128

Page 129

Page 130

Page 131

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 133

Page 134

Page 135

Page 136

Page 137

Page 138

Page 139

Page 140

List of Policies

Agenda Item 5e

Local Review Reference: 19/00026/RREF
Planning Application Reference: 19/00203/FUL
Development Proposal: Replacement Windows
Location: 5 – 1 Sandbed, Hawick
Applicant: Hawick Angling Club
Scottish Borders Local Development Plan 2016
POLICY PMD1: SUSTAINABILITY
In determining planning applications and preparing development briefs, the Council will have
regard to the following sustainability principles which underpin all the Plan’s policies and
which developers will be expected to incorporate into their developments:
a)
b)
c)
d)
e)
f)
g)
h)
i)
j)
k)
l)

the long term sustainable use and management of land
the preservation of air and water quality
the protection of natural resources, landscapes, habitats, and species
the protection of built and cultural resources
the efficient use of energy and resources, particularly non-renewable resources
the minimisation of waste, including waste water and encouragement to its
sustainable management
the encouragement of walking, cycling, and public transport in preference to the
private car
the minimisation of light pollution
the protection of public health and safety
the support to community services and facilities
the provision of new jobs and support to the local economy
the involvement of the local community in the design, management and improvement
of their environment

POLICY PMD2: QUALITY STANDARDS
All new development will be expected to be of high quality in accordance with sustainability
principles, designed to fit with Scottish Borders townscapes and to integrate with its
landscape surroundings. The standards which will apply to all development are that:
Sustainability
a)
In terms of layout, orientation, construction and energy supply, the developer has
demonstrated that appropriate measures have been taken to maximise the efficient
use of energy and resources, including the use of renewable energy and resources
such as District Heating Schemes and the incorporation of sustainable construction
techniques in accordance with supplementary planning guidance. Planning
applications must demonstrate that the current carbon dioxide emissions reduction
target has been met, with at least half of this target met through the use of low or
zero carbon technology,
b)
it provides digital connectivity and associated infrastructure,
c)
it provides for Sustainable Urban Drainage Systems in the context of overall
provision of Green Infrastructure where appropriate and their after-care and
maintenance,
d)
it encourages minimal water usage for new developments,
e)
it provides for appropriate internal and external provision for waste storage and
presentation with, in all instances, separate provision for waste and recycling and,
depending on the location, separate provision for composting facilities,
f)
it incorporates appropriate hard and soft landscape works, including structural or
screen planting where necessary, to help integration with its surroundings and the

1
Page 141

List of Policies

g)

wider environment and to meet open space requirements. In some cases
agreements will be required to ensure that landscape works are undertaken at an
early stage of development and that appropriate arrangements are put in place for
long term landscape/open space maintenance,
it considers, where appropriate, the long term adaptability of buildings and spaces.

Placemaking & Design
h)
It creates developments with a sense of place, based on a clear understanding of the
context, designed in sympathy with Scottish Borders architectural styles; this need
not exclude appropriate contemporary and/or innovative design,
i)
it is of a scale, massing, height and density appropriate to its surroundings and,
where an extension or alteration, appropriate to the existing building,
j)
it is finished externally in materials, the colours and textures of which complement the
highest quality of architecture in the locality and, where an extension or alteration, the
existing building,
k)
it is compatible with, and respects the character of the surrounding area,
neighbouring uses, and neighbouring built form,
l)
it can be satisfactorily accommodated within the site,
m)
it provides appropriate boundary treatments to ensure attractive edges to the
development that will help integration with its surroundings,
n)
it incorporates, where appropriate, adequate safety and security measures, in
accordance with current guidance on ‘designing out crime’.
Accessibility
o)
Street layouts must be designed to properly connect and integrate with existing street
patterns and be able to be easily extended in the future where appropriate in order to
minimise the need for turning heads and isolated footpaths,
p)
it incorporates, where required, access for those with mobility difficulties,
q)
it ensures there is no adverse impact on road safety, including but not limited to the
site access,
r)
it provides for linkages with adjoining built up areas including public transport
connections and provision for buses, and new paths and cycleways, linking where
possible to the existing path network; Travel Plans will be encouraged to support
more sustainable travel patterns,
s)
it incorporates adequate access and turning space for vehicles including those used
for waste collection purposes.
Greenspace, Open Space & Biodiversity
t)
It provides meaningful open space that wherever possible, links to existing open
spaces and that is in accordance with current Council standards pending preparation
of an up-to-date open space strategy and local standards. In some cases a
developer contribution to wider neighbourhood or settlement provision may be
appropriate, supported by appropriate arrangements for maintenance,
u)
it retains physical or natural features or habitats which are important to the amenity or
biodiversity of the area or makes provision for adequate mitigation or replacements.
Developers are required to provide design and access statements, design briefs and
landscape plans as appropriate.
POLICY ED3: TOWN CENTRES AND SHOPPING DEVELOPMENT
The Council will seek to develop and enhance the role of town centres. A network of centres
and growth of the retail sector will be supported through directing development to the
following district town centres:

2
Page 142

List of Policies
Duns, Eyemouth, Galashiels, Hawick, Jedburgh, Kelso, Melrose, Peebles, Selkirk
To protect town centres, town centre locations will be preferred to edge-of-centre locations
which, in turn, will be preferred to out-of-centre locations. An out-of- centre location will only
be considered where there is no suitable site available in a town centre or edge-of-centre
location.
The council will support a wide range of uses appropriate to a town centre. Proposals for
shopping development and other town centre developments will generally be approved
within defined district town centres provided that the character, vitality, viability, and mixed
use nature of the town centre will be maintained and enhanced. For the avoidance of doubt,
the council will apply the preferred order of locations set out above to appropriate uses
generating significant footfall, including community and cultural facilities, offices, libraries,
and education and healthcare facilities as well as retail and commercial leisure uses. It will
also ensure that different uses are developed in the most appropriate locations.
Town centre enhancement, including the provision of new retail facilities and complementary
non-retail uses, will be encouraged in centres both within the hierarchy and other centres
which:
a)
are council priorities for area regeneration because of special economic difficulties
and/or population decline,
b)
are subject to significant retail spending leakage,
c)
play an important role in areas planned for substantial development under the
development strategy.
The council will have regard to the following considerations, where relevant, in assessing
applications for out of centre development, including retail proposals:
a)
the individual or cumulative impact of the proposed development on the vitality and
viability of existing town centres,
b)
the availability of a suitable town centre or edge of centre site,
c)
the ability of the proposal to meet deficiencies in shopping provision which cannot be
met in town centre or edge of centre locations,
d)
the impact of the proposal on travel patterns and car usage,
e)
the accessibility of the site by a choice of means of transport,
f)
the preference for commercial centres in the preferred order of locations, including
appropriate retail clusters and parks, over other out of centre locations,
g)
the extent to which a proposal would constitute appropriate small scale shopping
provision designed to serve the needs of local rural communities,
h)
the location of the proposal. Sites will be located within existing settlements and,
within them preference will be given to applications on vacant or derelict sites, or on sites
deemed to be surplus to requirements.
The council will encourage the use of town centres during the evening provided residential
amenity is protected. Any proposed development which would create an unacceptable
adverse impact on the town centre will be refused.
POLICY HD3 : PROTECTION OF RESIDENTIAL AMENITY
Development that is judged to have an adverse impact on the amenity of existing or
proposed residential areas will not be permitted. To protect the amenity and character of
these areas, any developments will be assessed against:

3
Page 143

List of Policies
a)

the principle of the development, including where relevant, any open space that
would be lost; and
the details of the development itself particularly in terms of:
the scale, form and type of development in terms of its fit within a residential area,
the impact of the proposed development on the existing and surrounding properties
particularly in terms of overlooking, loss of privacy and sunlighting provisions. These
considerations apply especially in relation to garden ground or ‘backland’
development,
the generation of traffic or noise,
the level of visual impact.

b)
(i)
(ii)

(iii)
(iv)

POLICY EP9: CONSERVATION AREAS
The Council will support development proposals within or adjacent to a Conservation Area
which are located and designed to preserve or enhance the special architectural or historic
character and appearance of the Conservation Area. This should accord with the scale,
proportions, alignment, density, materials, and boundary treatment of nearby buildings, open
spaces, vistas, gardens and landscapes.
The Council may require applications for full, as opposed to Planning Permission in Principle
Consent.
Conservation Area Consent, which is required for the demolition of an unlisted building
within a Conservation Area, will only be considered in the context of appropriate proposals
for redevelopment and will only be permitted where:
a)
the building is incapable of reasonably beneficial use by virtue of its location, physical
form or state of disrepair, and
b)
the structural condition of the building is such that it can not be adapted to
accommodate alterations or extensions without material loss to its character, and
c)
the proposal will preserve or enhance the Conservation Area, either individually or as
part of the townscape.
In cases a) to c) above, demolition will not be permitted to proceed until acceptable
alternative treatment of the site has been approved and a contract for the replacement
building or for an alternative means of treating the cleared site has been agreed.
Design Statements will be required for all applications for alterations, extensions, or for
demolition and replacement which should explain and illustrate the design principles and
design concepts of the proposals.
OTHER MATERIAL CONSIDERATIONS


SBC Supplementary Planning Guidance on Shop Fronts and Shop Signs 2011

4
Page 144

